
RE: 99 Bow St 

Meeting:  Sept 1, 2021 

 

Dear Historic District Commission, 

 

   The requested increase in deck area is very disheartening.  The NHDES application states this project is a “Major 

Impact Project”.  It seems two of the larger rock formation will be completely covered by this “new” deck. These rocks, 

not only provide character, show how difficult it was to construct these buildings but also provide protection for many 

seabirds which frequent this area.   

   This location already received an addition to the existing deck in 2015. However, that size is not clearly stated in the 

HDC video presentation.  C2, A9 and exhibit 3/E each show a different legend (1”=10’, 1/8”= 1’, 1/16”= 1’) and size of the 

updated 2015 deck.   There is a small panhandle not included because the latest proposal shows them in the new areas.  

The question that looms is how big was the deck approved for in 2015 per city records? How big is it really?  

  The meeting on June 3, 2015, pages 7 to 10 of the HDC Minutes show some issues which arose and were discussed.  

http://files.cityofportsmouth.com/agendas/2015/hdc/hdc060315m.pdf 

The public easement is discussed in detail in the 2015 video. The applicant specifically states the easement for the 

public as about 20’ X 25’.  Looking at this “new” proposal the public access seems significantly smaller. Exhibit A9 (pg 

12) shows the public access will be 21’ X 10’ with a planter between it and a larger hostess/waiting area for restaurant 

guests.  How big was the public easement agreed upon in 2015 and how can that change to a smaller size?  

  The applicant stated in 2015 that the building was under NHDES and USACE jurisdiction yet the deck is connected to 

and supported in part by the original building which implies city regulations.   

   The NHDES permit from 07/06/21 for this address shows a change of 2901sf of decking/dock and yet the city proposal 

shows about 2455 sf.   

  It doesn’t matter how pretty this deck looks and how much art is added to it to this area.  The destruction of the 

historic look of Portsmouth’s iconic Bow Street view with the tug boats and impact the needed new pilings will have on 

the river bed should not be ignored.  It’s one thing to update an old deck.   It’s another to add 2400sf to an existing deck 

which is somewhere between 500sf to 744sf. This is about a 480% increase in capacity with a decrease in public space 

and no additional parking.  The benefit to the public is none!  Covering of the rock formations will change the natural 

look and wildlife use of this area. The large increase in seating capacity will negatively affect parking and public safety. 

   During Covid Portsmouth tried to support its local businesses.  What makes Portsmouth successful with so many 

restaurants is their maximum capacity allows many to exist and thieve in one small area.   Be aware that all the art and 

public access will not offset allowing this much of an increase in a deck which may change the future of  entire 

Portsmouth waterfront.  

  Please do NOT approve this massive increase in decking. The effects on the visual, business, parking, residential and 

natural aspects of Bow Street will forever be negatively impacted.  

 

Respectfully, 

Elizabeth Bratter 

Portsmouth Property Owner 

159 McDonough St. 

http://files.cityofportsmouth.com/agendas/2015/hdc/hdc060315m.pdf


 

 

September 1, 2021 
 
 
Via email 
 
The Historic District Commission 
City of Portsmouth 
City Hall, 3rd Floor 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH   03801 
 
RE: Petition of Martingale, LLC 

Subject Property: 99 Bow Street, Portsmouth NH, Tax Map #106, Lot #54 
 
Dear Commission Members: 
 
This office represents a direct abutter to the above identified property, BowPorts EV, LLC 
(“BowPorts”) which is the owner of Unit 2 at 111 Bow Street.  We understand that the Applicant 
sent the individual members a letter regarding its application.  We ask that this please be 
provided to each of the members prior to the work session scheduled for tonight.  Please consider 
the following: 
 

1. When the Martingale created the existing deck in 2011 it did so while advising 
that it would not ask for more.  (See Exhibit 1, Page 1 – Page 3, Minutes of 
Conservation Commission Meeting, May 9, 2012)(stating that the deck was 
“limited to building along the shoreline” and “docking structure would not extend 
any further out than the other docking structures in the area.”)   

 
This is why in 2015, the first time that the Martingale requested expansion despite 
its representations just a few years earlier that it would not, the Conservation 
Commission denied approval of a request to recommend that the DES approve a 
Dredge and Fill permit.  (See Exhibit 1, Page 4 – Page 6, Minutes of Conservation 
Commission Denial, “the motion to recommend approval of the application to the 
State Wetlands Bureau failed to pass) 
 
A re-hearing of the HDC’s 2015 decision was scheduled.  The Applicant 
withdrew their request which “invalidates the Certificate of Approval.”  (Exhibit 
1, page 7). 

 
2. It is important to note that the Applicant’s existing building and deck required 

many variances.  What the Applicant ultimately requested and the City approved 
eliminated the public view and access to the waterfront from Bow Street.  So the 
issue that the Applicant now purportedly seeks to address (lack of public access to 
the waterfront) is something that it created. 
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Similarly, if it was truly the Applicant’s motivation over the last ten (10) years it 
could have and would have provided public access and/or handicap access to its 
deck.  It raised this issue in 2015.  Clearly, this is something that it has 
considered.  Rather than implement it, though, it is again using this as a way to 
color what is obviously the true intent of its project – to massively expand its 
existing business which is already over scale for the area.  The Applicant already 
advertises itself as the “BIGGEST DECK IN PORTSMOUTH.”  (See Attached 
Exhibit 2, page 10, Photo of Martingale Sign). 

 
3. The Applicant’s identification of abutting properties that allegedly are of equal or 

greater mass is perplexing.  Some of these entities have small decks.  These are 
generally smaller than the existing Applicant deck which, again, is the “Biggest 
deck in Portsmouth.”  Several of the properties (i.e., 111 Bow and 113 Bow) do 
not have decks at all.   

 
4. There is not consent of the abutters.  The Applicant knows this.  Yet it continues 

to represent otherwise.  All that has occurred is that one individual, John 
Samonas, privately conferred his consent.  Two other owners, BowPorts (Unit 2) 
and Marjan Frank and George Glidden (Unit 3), object.  One individual’s position 
does not represent that of the 111 Bow Street Condominium Association 
(“Association”).  Its By-Laws state that all action that may occur at a meeting 
may only be taken without a meeting with the approval of and in writing signed 
by all unit owners.  (By-Laws, Art. III, Sec. 5)  There is no writing – signed by all 
unit owners—conferring consent.   

 
5. Erecting “visual buffers” such as large statues and sculptures does not rectify the 

harm that such a massive expansion causes to abutting properties.  In many ways, 
its makes it worse because rather than seeing existing nature and existing 
waterscape, abutters will be seeing the backs of these sculptures – that 
purportedly depict waterscape images.  So, we again ask that the HDC consider 
the propriety of taking away nature and replacing it with one person’s artistic 
images of . . . . nature.   
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We welcome the opportunity to address these issues further with the Commission.  If there are 
any questions or we can provide further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.   

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
John P. Sherman 
 
Cc: Client 

Sherry Young, Esq. counsel for Martingale, LLC (via email) 
Nick Cracknell, City of Portsmouth (via email) 
Peter Britz, City of Portsmouth (via email) 
Marjan Frank and George Glidden (via email) 
John Samonas (via email) 
David Price, NH DES (via email) 
Stephanie Giallongo, NH DES (via email) 
Juliet Walker, City of Portsmouth (via email) 
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